
December 21, 2023

Dear Mr. Garland:

You have also provided the text of the Town’s nepotism policy:

Law/Analysis

Howard Garland

Town Administrator

Town of Jefferson

P.O. Box 306

Jefferson, SC 29718

Initially, we believe it is within the Town Council’s authority to interpret and decide whether to

enforce the Town’s nepotism policy. It is our understanding that the Town operates under a

council form ofgovernment pursuant to sections 5-1 1-10 to -40 ofthe South Carolina Code (2004).

“Under the council form ofgovernment there shall be a municipal council composed of five, seven

The husband ofour assistant town clerk is running for Mayor of the Town and with

the retirement of our current town clerk, the assistant town clerk is in line to be

promoted to the town clerk position. If elected mayor, the husband of our assistant

town clerk would be his wife’s direct supervisor if she were to assume the town

clerk position.

People in the same immediate family may not be employed or continue to be

employed if one directly or indirectly supervises another or interacts with another

in the handling ofmoney or compensation.



However, we provide the following law in the hope it may be helpful to you.

The Ethics Act provides,
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S.C. Code Ann. § 8-13-750 (2019). As an elected official of a municipality, the Town’s mayor is

a public official under the provisions of the Ethics Act. S.C. Code Ann. § 8-13-100(27) (2019)

(‘“Public official’ means an elected or appointed official of the State, a county, a municipality, or

(B) A public official, public member, or public employee may not participate in an

action relating to the discipline of the public official's, public member's, or public

employee's family member.

1 S.C. Code Ann. §§ 15-78-10, et seq. (2005 & Supp. 2023).
2 S.C. Code Ann. §§ 8-13-100, el seq. (2019 & Supp. 2023).
3 We note the State statutory provision generally prohibiting nepotism, section 8-5-10 of the South

Carolina Code, has been repealed.

or nine members including the mayor.” S.C. Code Ann. § 5-11-20. “All legislative and

administrative ve

ve



Moreover, section 8-13-700 of the South Carolina Code (2019) prohibits a public official from

knowingly using their office to obtain an economic interest for themselves or an immediate family

member, such as a spouse. § 8-13-700 (“No public official, public member, or public employee

may knowingly use his official office, membership, or employment to obtain an economic interest

for himself, a family member, an individual with whom he is associated, or a business with which

he is associated.”); § 8-1 3-100(1 8)(b) (2019) (providing “immediate family” includes a public

official’s spouse).

The determination of whether sections 8-13-700 and -750 apply to the scenario described in your

letter is a factual question to be determined by the Ethics Commission. See Op. S.C. Att’v Gen.,

2013 WL 6924890 (S.C.A.G. December 23, 2013) (recognizing the Ethics Commission’s

“exclusive jurisdiction regarding any resolution of questions involving interpretation and

administrative enforcement of the State Ethics Act”); Op. S.C. Att’v Gen., 2006 WL 1207271

(S.C.A.G. April 4, 2006) (providing that “[b]ecause this Office does not have the authority of a

court or other fact-finding body, we are not able to adjudicate or investigate factual questions.”

(alteration in original) (quoting Op. S.C. Att'v Gen., 1989 WL 406130 (April 3, 1989))).

Accordingly, we advise you to request an ethics advisory opinion on this matter.
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a political subdivision thereof, including candidates for the office.”); S.C. Code Ann. § 5-1 1 -20(b)

(“The mayor and members of the council shall be elected in accordance with Chapter 15.”). The

Ethics Act defines “family member” to include a spouse. S.C. Code Ann. § 8-13-100(1 5)(a)

(2019).

We believe both subsections of section 8-13-750 couldon

au2
10f
117.24
11 0 0 -1 2346 934 Tm
(with)ion



Conclusion

Sincerely,

Howard Garland
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We believe the interpretation and enforcement of the Town’s nepotism policy is within the Town

Council’s discretionary authority. Nevertheless, because we believe the Ethics Act could be

implicated in a scenario such as the one described in your letter, we advise you to seek an opinion

from the Ethics Commission on this matter.

Elizabeth McCann

Assistant Attorney General

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:

A ,
'Robert D. Cook

Solicitor General


